## Minutes of the Fall Meeting of the Board of Directors of the Colgate University Alumni Corporation Friday, October 16, 2020

The Fall meeting of the Board of Directors of the Colgate University Alumni Corporation (the "Alumni Council") was held on Friday, October 16, 2020, via video conference.

The meeting was called to order at 12:50 p.m.

A silent roll call was taken by Timothy C. Mansfield, Executive Secretary.

The following officers, directors and life member(s) were present: Mrs. Johanna Ames '98, Mrs. Patricia E. Apelian '76, Mr. Lawrence G. Arnold '63, Mr. Thomas A. Baker '69, Mrs. Brooke S. Beck '94, Mr. Robert P. Burke '85, Dr. Becky Bye '02, Ms. Melissa J. Coley '79, Mr. Chad E. Cooley '00, Mr. Gregory M. Dahlberg '98, Mrs. Elizabeth W. DiCesare '05, Ms. Jocelyn B. Donat '88, Mrs. Lauren P. D'Onofrio '82, Mrs. Theresa Donahue Egler '77, Mr. Bruce S. Ferguson '91, Mrs. Christine Cronin Gallagher '83, Ms. Barbara J. Gould '81, Mrs. Susan L. Becker Gould '03, Mrs. Lauri Curtis Hadobas '77, Mrs. Susan Horowitz '76, Mr. Christian B. Johnson '02, Mrs. Erin Kiritsy '12, Mr. C. Thomas Kunz '72, Ms. Cara A. Lawler '05, Mr. Joseph A. Leo '01, Mrs. Kate S. Levine-Freedman '05, Ms. Debra S. LoCastro '05, Mr. Timothy C. Mansfield ', Ms. Shevorne O. Martin '08, Mr. Kevin A. McMurtry '88, Mr. John R. McQueen Esq. '70, Mrs. Pamela E. Odeen-LoDato '81, Mr. Jean-Pierre Paquin '96, Mrs. Jane Najarian Porter '74, Mrs. Emily R. Radovic '02, Mr. David L. Rea '82, Mr. Denniston M. Reid '94, Mrs. Allyson E. Riemma '11, Mr. Tal-ee E. Roberts '01, Mr. Andrew S. Roffe '68, Mr. James A. Speight IV '14, Mrs. Kimberly Esmay Taylor '80, Mr. Jon D. Tiktinsky '82, Mr. Carlton W. Walker '10, Mr. Kevin A. Zimmerman '90

The following officers, directors and life member(s) were present for committee meetings, but not present for the general session: Mr. Paul H. Cascio '83, Mrs. Jessica M. Prata Cianciara '01, Mr. Thomas W. Dempsey Jr. '72, Mr. Christopher L. Nulty '09, Mr. James C. Silas '06, Mr. Jarrett R. Turner '04

The following directors and life members were absent: Mr. Karl D. Fries '10, Mr. Robert C. Johnson '94, Mr. Ian J. Murphy '10, Mr. Timothy A. O'Neill '78, Mrs. Melanie B. Schiff '04, Mr. Christopher P. Vogelsang, Jr. '11, Mr. Gus P. Coldebella '91, Mr. Ronald A. Joyce '73, Mr. Joseph P. McGrath Jr. '85, Mr. Fred C. Meendsen Sr. '54, Mr. Scott A. Meiklejohn '77, Mr. C. Bruce Morser '76, Mr. Gerald D. Quill '60, Dr. G. Gary Ripple '64, Ms. Joanne D. Spigner '76, Mr. Bruce F. Wesson '64

It was established that a quorum was present.

#### Vice President's Report

Ms. Susie Becker Gould '03, Vice President announced two nominees for leadership positions on the Alumni Council beginning July 1, 2021. Ms. Lauri Hadobas '77 has been nominated to serve as Vice President and Mr. Christian Johnson '02 has been nominated to serve as Alumni Trustee. Both positions are subject to a formal vote at the January meeting.

#### **Treasurer's Report**

Due to the current COVID-19 crisis restricting travel to campus, Mr. Chad Cooley '00, Treasurer, reported that no funds were spent from the Alumni Council's operating budget for the fall meeting. Mr. Cooley expressed thanks for members who submitted their Contribution Acknowledgment form and Conflict of Interest form.

## Legal Counsel Report

Due to the current COVID-19 crisis restricting travel to campus, Mr. Andrew Roffe '68, Legal Counsel, reported that the Corporation will hold its annual meeting on Monday, October 26, 2020. Appropriate notice was made in the local newspaper and posted online to meet the legal requirements for notification to all members. Mr. Roffe also reported on a vote to approve the corporation's bylaws which installed a new officer for Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion (Mr. Carlton Walker '10). The Alumni Council's Policies and Procedures were also updated to reflect the changes to the bylaws.

## **Executive Secretary Report**

Mr. Timothy Mansfield, Executive Secretary reported on preparations for Reunion 2021, which remain uncertain due to the COVID-19 crisis. He also reported on the efforts to support Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion at Colgate for students, alumni, faculty, and staff.

## **Trustee Report**

Mr. Thomas Dempsey '72, Alumni Trustee reported on the updates from the Board of Trustees. First, the Board voted on a resolution to thank all the faculty and staff who worked to support students during the pandemic. Mr. Dempsey noted that the Board heard presentations from Dean Paul McLoughlin, Provost Tracey Hucks, and JS Hope (Chief Financial Officer) on the financial health of the university and the health status for all its constituents. He and the Board were very supportive and grateful for the position that campus leadership has kept Colgate during the pandemic. Mr. Dempsey also reported on a conversation about US News and World Report rankings. A preliminary analysis of *USNWR* rankings (Colgate #20) revealed several areas of possible focus for improvement, including two key factors that Colgate should examine further as it seeks to increase its reach and reputation: 1) the University's overall financial resources and expenditures per student, and 2) "social mobility," defined by the publication as the ability of an institution to see all students move toward degree completion.

Lastly, Mr. Dempsey reported that four separate groups from campus met with the Board to offer short presentations. They include students from the Konosioni Honor Society who are seeking to change their name, students from the Medusa Movement who are seeking more support for victims of sexual assault, staff from international student services, and staff from the office of sustainability.

#### Academic Life Committee

Ms. Elizabeth DiCesare '05, chair, reported that the Academic Life committee is working on three initiatives this year. The first program is an alumni partnership with the Residential Commons. Alumni would partner with the Residential Commons directors to help support the commons, including commons programming, supporting students, and fostering student-alumni connections. The second initiative is to develop relationships between faculty and alumni to provide alumni support to faculty in the classroom. Alumni would support the classroom experience by sharing their expertise or experience with a relevant class. This could include guest lectures, alumni feedback on student projects, and participation in class discussions. The third initiative is a student research symposium for an alumni audience. This would foster student-alumni interactions and help engage alumni with academics at Colgate. This would provide students with opportunities for feedback from alumni in their fields and potential networking opportunities. This may be an opportunity for students to practice a senior research/thesis/performance presentation before their final presentation. The committee also identified that there may be less opportunity for students to present at conferences because of the pandemic and this would provide an opportunity for those students.

#### **Alumni Engagement Committee**

Ms. Emily Raiber Radovic '02, chair, reported that the Alumni Engagement Committee met on Monday, October 5, 2020 to discuss how to recognize alumni district clubs for their work in 2019-2020. All

committee members were sent the results of the survey from the clubs. We have decided to recognize only a few clubs this year as there were limited events as a result of the pandemic:

The Carlton O Miller '14 Memorial Cup for Outstanding District Clubs:

- Colgate Club of Rochester, NY
- Colgate Club of New York City

The Harold S Merrell '42 Memorial Award for Most Improved club:

- Colgate Club of Cincinnati, OH
- Special Recognition Awards honor outstanding individual club programs or projects:
  - Colgate Club of Westchester County, NY

The committee also discussed the alumni engagement index and individual engagement scores and how they are now being measured given that there are no in person club events. They discussed the Colgate Link and upcoming virtual events and look forward to helping to continue to support these.

#### **Awards Committee**

Mr. Jon Tiktinsky '82, chair, reported that the Awards Committee is beginning their review of candidates for the 2021 alumni awards, including the Ann Yao '80 Young Alumni Award, Entrepreneur of the Year, Humanitarian Award, Maroon Citations, and the Wm. Brian Little '64 Award for Distinguished Service. The committee is dividing their work into various sub-groups to examine all the nominees thoroughly. All award winners will be appropriately recognized in 2021 despite the uncertain conditions for Reunion Weekend in June.

Mr. Tal-ee Roberts '01 has agreed to serve as Vice Chair. Our other new members are Ms. Brooke Beck '94 and Ms. Katherine Levine-Freedman '05. The committee is continuing the subcommittee structure they initiated last year as a means of efficiently evaluating candidates in the initial stage. Mr. Ian Murphy '10 will head the Wm. Brian Little '64 Award for Distinguished Service subcommittee, Mr. Greg Dahlberg '98 is heading the Maroon Citation subcommittee and Ms. Becky Bye '02 will once again head the Ann Yao '80 Young Alumni Award subcommittee.

Candidate bios went out to subcommittees on schedule this past week. The committee will once again also invite several knowledgeable Colgate staff to their final evaluation meeting in January. Finally, we are looking for new ways for committee members to vote anonymously. Finally, the committee is discussing how to best recognize award recipients in the "COVID world".

## **Campus Connections Committee**

Mr. Bruce Ferguson '91, chair, reported that the Campus Connections Committee met in late August to support the new Dean of Students (Dr. Dorsey Spencer) and his request to help Colgate students during quarantine. Shortly after, the committee sponsored thirteen "Table for 13" online discussion groups with Colgate students with topics ranging from career development, to the 2020 election, and to the best places on campus and the village. On September, 10, the committee met with Vice President and Director of Athletics Nicki Moore to preview the new athletic branding with launched publicly on October 15. The committee also discussed the new Alumni Council Athletic Liaison program which pairs varsity teams with alumni advisors. In the coming months, the committee is interested in learning more about the progress of the Residential Commons and capital projects for the Broad Street Village.

## **Career Initiatives Committee**

Ms. Debra LoCastro '05, chair, reported that the Career Initiatives Committee met on September 22 with Ms. Teresa Olsen, AVP and Director of Career Services, and Ms. Carolyn Strobel, TIA Director. The committee took a page from the Awards and Nominations Committees' clear charters and reviewed and

adopted a *Committee Member Agreement*, which outlines the commitments all members are expected to fulfill on the committee this year.

Ms. Olsen walked the committee through the priority alumni/student engagement programs, which include: Industry roundtables, Career Exploration Week Info Interviews, Career Modules, and Summer internship funding application review & contributions. We then had Ms. Strobel provide us with updates to Thought into Action (TIA). She and the TIA advisory board are working to connect current TIA programming into the Third Century Plan's middle campus vision - ex: expanding the program to reach more students, alumni & entrepreneurs; integrating TIA into the academic and social sides of university. DE&I is also a big focus of TIA this year, since they recognize the challenges inherent to diverse audiences when it comes to funding, access to mentors, etc. Of the incoming 100-level students: 50% women, 48% students of color, 14% international students, and 11% first-generation college students. A benefit of going virtual with mentors this year is that Carolyn was able to engage with a broader set of alumni and parents - 41% women, 17% persons of color in the mentor group. Lastly, we discussed the successful Career Ambassador Program with Athletics, which reaches 95% of all student athletes. Ms. Olsen proposed that Career Services is now looking to create a complementary program to this initiative to launch with the ALANA Cultural Center for students of color. As this unfolds, this may be a place for some partnership and input from the Alumni Council.

# **Communications Committee**

Mr. Christopher Nulty '09, chair, reported the committee has partnered closely with Vice President Laura Jack (Communications) and her team to overhaul the alumni Twitter presence. The committee was trying to combat two issues:

- Historically, Twitter account operated by the Alumni Council → very focused on the Council, not on the broader alumni base;
- Very little engagement from followers, lack of consistent content;

In order to achieve its goals of increasing engagement and driving better content, the committee took the following steps:

- Overhauled the look and feel of the Twitter account, including changing the name to be @ColgateAlumni;
- Turned the management of the Twitter account over to Colgate's Office of Communications in order to leverage their content and social media prowess.

Here is an overview of the results to date, all measured year-over-year:

- Increased the number of published posts by 483%
- Increased the number of impressions from 10,668 to 84,582, an increase of some 693%;
- And, increased the number of followers on Twitter more than 218%.

Colgate alumni are encouraged to follow the @ColgateAlumni today.

# Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion Committee

Mr. Carlton Walker '10, chair, reported that the Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion Committee is excited to have <u>a working foundation</u> on why the committee exists and how they intend to codify diversity and inclusion within the Alumni Council. With ongoing conversations as a committee, they intend to solidify training and metrics for which they can utilize, with a focus and emphasis on how they can utilize those metrics within the Nominations and Awards committees. More information will be available by the Winter Meeting.

DEI website: https://www.colgate.edu/about/third-century-plan/plan-diversity-equity-and-inclusion

## **Nominations Committee**

Ms. Lauri Hadobas '77, reported that the Nominations Committee met throughout the summer in groups to review hundreds of alumni profiles in order to establish the recommended slate of new Alumni Council members. In a final meeting of the Committee on October 1, the Committee finalized primary candidates and two alternates for each of the seven ERA vacancies except for two which had incumbents who could start their own term. The committee also identified primary and alternate candidates for the two At-Large positions. After reviewing with the Alumni Council in its meeting, the Council President and Vice President will contact those nominated to confirm their interest in serving on the Council. The final slate of nominees will be printed in the winter issue of the Colgate Magazine.

\* \* \* \*

# Meeting with President Casey

The Alumni Council was pleased to welcome President Brian W. Casey to their fall meeting. After introductions, President Casey provided an overview of the university's response to the COVID-19 pandemic. As of October 16, there were only two active cases on campus (with one expected to test negative on the weekend). The university has entered Gate 3 in <u>reopening stages</u> with hopes of entering Gate 4 by October 31. Colgate's <u>daily dashboard</u> has been hailed as detailed, comprehensive, and transparent by <u>higher education experts</u>, earning its highest rating.

President Casey cited the work underway on campus for the spring semester. He forecast a return to quarantine in January when students return to campus from various states under travel restrictions. He also discussed ongoing partnership with Patriot League Presidents to discuss a possible return to athletic competition. Despite ending fiscal year 2020 in a surplus, President Casey confirmed that over \$4M has been secured for COVID-19 safety. Faculty and students are currently enjoying 55% of classes in person, and students report being very pleased to be on campus despite the obvious challenges.

Colgate will return to capital campaign preparations and a feasibility study, adhering to the Third Century Plan to 1) attract the best talent, 2) strengthen the academic program, 3) enhancing the student experience, and 4) securing resources for the campus and community. Leadership Briefings are currently underway with Colgate's more generous supporters to increase our endowment to remove student debt, support financial aid, and secure endowed scholarships for faculty.

President Casey discussed the success of the Residential Commons with Burke and Pinchin Halls. He signaled the same needs on Broad Street for junior and senior year students, with seventeen properties being reviewed for improvements. He also cited a new housing development on Lebanon Street in Hamilton for faculty, staff, and other community partners. President Casey reported on Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion growth at Colgate - particularly with the Partnership for Racial Progress and the Alumni of Color organization. Colgate will hire a new Chief Diversity Officer in the coming months and recently accepted a \$250,000 gift from an alumnus to support student of color programming.

Questions/comments from the Alumni Council included:

- 1. Using Colgate's success with COVID-19 as a distinctive strength for Admissions
- 2. Managing student stress/anxiety in the winter months
- 3. Needing 20-25 new faculty endowed positions to compete with peer schools
- Capital projects suggested for Gatehouse, 113 Broad Street, the townhouses, and some other college houses; President Casey suggested the Alumni Council might help gauge affection for some properties on Broad Street

At 2:19 pm a motion was made to move to Executive Session to conduct votes for the 2021 slate of candidates for the Alumni Council. All members and alternates were unanimously approved. The General Session meeting was adjourned at 3:05 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Muothy Mainfind

Timothy C. Mansfield Executive Secretary